1977

Thurman David Heaberlin and Margie Heaberlin v. City of Fun Carnival et al : Brief of Appellants

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

The determination of the terms of partnership agreement, an accounting between the partners and the dissolution and winding up of the affairs of the partnership.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

A brief trial was held after the court's denial of Respondents' two Motions for Summary Judgment. At the trial, the lower court ruled there was a partnership, denied

respondents' counterclaim for money judgment on alleged promissory notes due respondents from appellants, ordered an accounting be made between the partners and that a referee be selected for this purpose; that the court would issue a specific order for the referee to act within. This was not done. Appellant prepared and submitted a proposed order for this purpose. Respondents then filed a Motion for Summary Judgment for the third time. Lower court then reversed itself and granted respondents' Motion for Summary Judgment.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The appellants pray this court reverse the judgments of the trial court; to determine terms of the partnership agreement of the parties and to order an accounting and the winding up of the affairs of the partnership on the basis of the partnership agreement.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

In the Spring of 1964, appellants entered into an oral partnership agreement with respondent Lou Melendez who operated a traveling carnival known as the City of Fun Carnival. (Dave Heaberlin Deposition, Page 8, Lines 4-12; Margie Heaberlin Deposition, Page 9, Lines 1-9) Pursuant to said agreement, appellants were to have 50% share of the profits and losses of the business and were to have the

primary responsibility of maintenance, repair, set-up, take-down, clean up and moving all of the carnival equipment and supplies. Respondent Lou Melendez was responsible for the "paper work", receipts, disbursements and the handling of the money. (Dayd Heaberlin Deposition, Page 12, Lines 17-18, Lines 24-25; Page 13, Line 1; Page 44, Line 8 to Page 45, Line 10; Page 47, Lines 5-16; Page 57, Lines 9-21) Pursuant to this oral agreement, the business was operated by the partners on a 50-50 basis, both partners performing their primary responsibilities as agreed upon and as above described. The facts are uncontroverted that respondent Lou Melendez prepared and filed U. S. Partnership Income Tax Returns for the years 1966, 1967, 1968 and 1969; said Federal Partnership Income Tax Returns reflected equal ownership between appellant David Heaberlin and respondent Lou Melendez and reflected a financial statement and balance sheet of the partnership illustrating capital accounts and net worth of both partners; and further illustrating equal division of the profits of the partnership. (Deposition Louis Melendez, Jr., Page 32, Line 7 to Page 33, Line 10; Plaintiff's Memorandum June 16, 1972, Point VI, Page 3, Lines 21-28) Appellant Dave Heaberlin and respondent Lou Melendez both signed and executed installment contracts, doing business as City of Fun Carnival. (Dave Heaberlin Deposition, Page 49, Lines 21 to Page 53, Line 20; Page 54, Lines 12-25) One parcel of land located in Pleasant Grove, Utah County, State of Utah, was taken into the name

of appellant Dave Heaberlin and respondent Lou Melendez and the title to said land is still held in both names as partners. Several vehicles, trailers and tractors were taken into the names of appellant Dave Heaberlin and respondent Lou Melendez. Copies of these registration documents were attached to appellants' pleadings in opposition to respondents' several motions for summary judgment and are a part of the pleadings. Respondent Lou Melendez retained a majority of the earnings of the partnership in the business for the purpose of increasing the assets of the partnership and just minimal salaries were distributed on an equal basis to appellants and respondents. The financial statements of the partnership reflect a substantial accumulation of net worth in the partnership business and the capital accounts of the partners. In January, 1965, respondent Lou Melendez contemplated incorporating the partnership business known as City of Fun Carnival. On about February 1, 1965, respondents prepared and presented to appellants for their signature a pre-incorporation agreement. Appellants did not understand the proposed pre-incorporation agreement and refused to sign. (Dave Heaberlin Deposition, Page 10, Lines 12-23; Page 40, Lines 10-24; Respondent Lou Melendez Deposition, Exhibit 1) Respondents continued to urge appellants to sign the document and represented to them that it was to facilitate business dealings with third parties and would not effect the existing or future rights of appellants. Based upon this representation,

appellants signed said proposed pre-incorporation agreement on about April 18, 1967. (Dave Heaberlin Deposition, Page 10, Line 12 to Page 11, Line 6; Page 25, Line 21 to Page 28, Line 30; Page 61, Lines 3-19; Exhibit 1) Exhibit 1 of Lou Melendez's Deposition provided as follows:

"This agreement interred into on the 1st of February 1965 and to be retroactive to January 2, 1965 is for sale of 45% of stock of City of Fun Carnival by Lou Melendez to Dave Heaberlin for the sum of \$25,000.00 plus \$5,000.00 to cover outstanding personal loans aquired by Lou Melendez for the business. The sale is for the operating corporation, City of Fun Carnival Inc., and to purchase 45% of the Lou Melendez Inc. holding Corporation. The sale is for portable carnival equipment only and for no other Lou Melendez interests or investments unless agreed to in writing. The sale is mainly for help in operating the carnival unit as no additional new cash is involved. Therefore if conditions become where this is impossible the sale is of no value and may be terminated.

1. Dave is to work at least 11 months every year in helping to operate and maintain carnival equipment.
2. Purchasing of shares is for portable carnival equipment only and in no other of Lou's property or interest unless in writing.
3. Complete inventory is to be taken of all Dave's equipment and credit given to him as to cost value. He must declare his personal inventory.
4. Daves salary is to be from a "one" ball game, his wife is to operate unless changed by agreement of mutual consent. Ball game is to be operated when approved by Lou in

accordance to fair contracts and
privilage paid.

- 4A. Daves salary is at all times
paid in full by "one" ball
game receipts. At no time will
wages be in arrears.
- 4B. Dividends may be given when Lou
feels necessary and appropriate
by surplus. Dividends are to
be paid according to stock
holdings.
5. Dave is to at all time conform with
the policies set up by Lou, especially
of no fighting, drinking or unbusiness
like conduct. He is to reveal to no
one the business transactions between
Lou and Dave.
6. The assets are at all times to be in
the name of Lou and the show will at
all times do business through Lou
and by him. Lou's decisions at all
times will be final.
7. The home of business will be in
Pleasant Grove, Utah, and as directed
by Lou. Winter quarters will be in
Utah unless directed otherwise by
Lou.
8. The sale of 45% of show stock to
Dave is to be \$25,000.00 plus
\$5,000.00 for additional bills made
personally by Lou to personal friends
and to be repaid by him, namely
Robert Melendez, Sam Soccoli, and
immediate family in-laws, etc,
amount not to be more than \$5,000.00
no interest attached.
9. In case Dave ever wants to leave
or is bought out, it may be done by
giving one months notice and he
agrees to never work or have dealings
in the area this carnival has ever
showed with him, for 5 years to come.

10. Dave, if he elects to leave the firm will never be allowed to leave with any piece of property except for the inventory he filed at beginning of agreement and any added to list by Lou bought personally by Dave - all additions are to be signed for by Lou.
11. All equipment bought will be with company funds for the company.
12. As carnival is efficient only in size at no time will the unit ever be divided for dislvement of partnership.
13. Dave will be paid, in case of disolve-ment, price agreed upon or by amount of stock paid into corporation by him and in no case more than the \$25,000.00 agreed purchase price and in same time period as paid for unless otherwise agreed upon.
14. This partnership can be dissolved by Lou in case of Dave's failure to live up to Lou's policies and in case of disagreements between parties by using #13 as basis.
15. Each party is to help form an efficient portable carnival to the best of their abilities. Dave is to have no other interest except in the fulfillment of this contract.
16. Upon Dave's payment of \$25,000.00 for 45% of City of Fun Inc. for \$1.00 he may exercise the option to buy 45% of Lou Melendez Inc. holding corpora-tion of the carnival equipment.
17. Dave is to pay \$1,250.00 per year to Lou from summer earnings given from declared dividend, if business is financially able to and by majority stockholders vote. Five thousand dollars is to be paid as quickly as possible but never faster than sound judgement by Lou. Interest of 8% on

stock payments are to be made only if in arrears. Payments and all accounting is to be as of January 1, 1965 for all practical purposes. If more than \$1,250.00 yearly dividend is declared at least 75% of Dave's share must be applied towards stock payments until full amount is paid.

18. This contract becomes void and collectable as to recourse in case of Dave's absence of longer than two months or for 1 week in time of operations.
19. At no time will Dave be able to sell his interest to any party outside of Lou unless by inheritance to his wife only, and then no further unless approved by Lou in exercise of #13 by Lou to Dave and his wife's estate by their death.
20. The main point in selling the 45% to Dave is for his assistance in maintaining good quality maintenance on show and moving the unit efficiently.
21. A \$50,000.00 Life Insurance policy will be carried as of January 1, 1967 on Lou Melendez and paid for by the City of Fun. Holder is to be company for the sole purpose of buying out Lou's share of portable carnival equipment and to sell to Dave Heaberlin. Equipment includes everything portable except personal items. Truck, car, trailer house, etc. Upon transfer of shares the balance due of Dave Heaberlin's original 45% purchase become a first mortgage on show. After five years from date of corporation agreement this clause may be re-negotiated January 1, 1966."

Exhibit 1 above was further evidenced by six stock subscription promissory notes in the amount of \$5,000.00 each. Respondent Melendez was to control the payment of the said

stock subscription notes out of proceeds of the business as respondent Melendez, in his judgment, would determine that the withdrawal of said money would not hurt the business. (Dave Heaberlin Deposition, Page 12, Line 19 to Page 13, Line 2; Page 27, Line 21 to Page 30, Line 15; See Exhibit 1, paragraphs 4B and paragraph 17)

After Exhibit 1 was signed, the business continued to operate as it had originally on a 50% division of profits and losses and the same responsibilities as prior to said pre-incorporation agreement; respondents divided minimal salaries equally after said date and reinvested to excess profits back into the business. (Dave Heaberlin Deposition, Page 34, Line 24 to Page 36, Line 11) This created capital accounts of the partners in excess of \$200,000.00 each for appellants and respondents.

The proposed corporation was never formed, no stock was issued, the stock subscription notes were never cancelled by the respondents and respondents never made any demands for payment on said stock subscription notes until appellants commenced this action. Parties mutually terminated the partnership and appellants left the City of Fun Carnival on or about May 24, 1970, after an argument provoked by and with respondents herein. (Dave Heaberlin Deposition, Page 16, Line 9 to Page 17, Line 25)

On February 9, 1971, Judge Joseph E. Nelson, the original trial judge, signed an Order which states as follows:

"It is hereby ordered that the defendant Louis Melendez, Jr. be and the same is hereby enjoined and restrained from incurring any debts or obligations against the assets of the City of Fun Carnival during the pendency of this action and until further hearing and order of this court. The court denies Plaintiffs' Motion for the appointment of a receiver at this time and directs that this matter be placed on the trial calendar to be tried on its merits at the earliest convenient trial setting. The court denied the balance of plaintiffs' Motion except for the injunction concerning the incurring of additional indebtedness as hereinabove stated."

Contrary to this Order and without any subsequent order modifying the same, respondents encumbered the partnership assets with an SBA loan.

At the time of the mutual termination of the business by the partners, respondents had in their possession an automobile for their partnership transportation and a housetrailer in which they lived. The automobile and the housetrailer was later repossessed at the instance of the respondents herein.

Appellants commenced this action to compel respondents to account for the assets of the partnership, to distribute the same and wind up the affairs of the partnership; all after respondents refused to do so on request.

On April 28, 1972, respondents filed a Motion for Summary Judgment regarding partnership agreement of the parties. On July 29, 1972, the above entitled court denied

respondents' Motion for Summary Judgment. On November 3, 1972, trial court issued a Pre-Trial Order bifarcating the issues for trial; first trial relating to the partnership agreement and its effects of dissolution; the second issue referred to trial for an accounting between the former partners. On January 17, 1973, the trial court reversed itself and ruled that Exhibit 1 herein, the pre-incorporated agreement was the partnership agreement of the parties and that the only remaining issue was that of accounting among the former partners. Appellants' Motion for reconsideration and new trial on said issue was denied. On July 12, 1973, the trial court granted respondents' motion for protective order denying appellants the opportunity to discover the details of the SBA loan made by respondents upon the property of the partnership and contrary to Judge Nelson's previous order. Again on April 18, 1973, the trial court denied respondents' Motion for Summary Judgment for the second time. On February 6, 1974, the above entitled court made and entered a minute entry which provided in part as follows:

"It is the order of the court that an accountant must be appointed to decide this matter or as an alternative the court will arrange to have Judge Harding hear the matter on its merits, with the losing party to bear the costs. The attorneys to make their own arrangements for a reporter."

"....Upon request of both counsel and their clients the court hereby appoints Mr. Verlan Anderson to act as an accountant on the above

matter. The court to make a detailed order and submit same to Mr. Taylor and Mr. Lewis."

The trial court did not prepare such a detailed order before the referee. Counsel for appellants prepared and submitted to the court a proposed detailed order for this purpose. Upon a third motion for summary judgment made by respondents, the trial court on April 15, 1977, entered an Order and Judgment granting respondents' motion for summary judgment in all respects and ordering that all of the property of the partnership belonged to respondents. The same genuine issues of controverted facts existed all through the motions and orders of the trial court, without the facts changing in any respect.

The pleadings with respect to the above motion reflects the controverted facts of genuine issues to be tried.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN GRANTING SUMMARY JUDGMENT TO RESPONDENTS ON TERMS OF PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT, THERE BEING THE FOLLOWING CONTROVERTED GENUINE ISSUES OF MATERIAL FACTS:

A. WAS THERE AN ORAL PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES.

B. DID A PURPORTED PRE-INCORPORATION AGREEMENT MODIFY THE ORAL PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT?

(a) WAS THERE ADEQUATE CONSIDERATION FOR THE PURPORTED AGREEMENT?

(b) WAS THE DOCUMENT UNCONSCIONABLE AND THEREFORE UNENFORCEABLE?

(c) WAS IT EVER PUT INTO FORCE AND ACTED UPON BY THE PARTIES?

C. WHAT WERE THE TERMS OF THE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT?

Rule 56(c) of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure provide that summary judgment may be granted only if there is no genuine issue as to any material fact. In Rich vs. McGovern, Utah, 1976, 551 P2d 1266, this court rules as follows:

"Inasmuch as the party moved against is being defeated without the privilege of a trial, the court should carefully scrutinize the 'submissions' and contentions he makes thereon to see if his contentions and proposals as to proof of material facts, if resolved in his favor, would entitle him to prevail; and it so appears, the motion for summary judgment should be denied and a trial should be had.....,"

In the case now pending before this court there is and was several controverted genuine issues of fact.

A. Was There An Oral Partnership Agreement Between The Parties? - The depositions of witnesses and the parties clearly disclose that an oral partnership was formed, assets were acquired in the partnership names of appellants and respondents, U. S. Tax Returns filed and prepared by respondents disclosing a partnership between the parties, their equal interest therein and balance sheet disclosing some of the assets of the partnership. The court originally ruled there was a partnership and ordered an accounting.

B. Did A Purported Pre-Incorporation Agreement Modify The Oral Partnership Agreement? -

(a) Was There Adequate Consideration For The Purported Agreement? - The depositions of appellants and respondents fully disclose that the proposed pre-incorporation agreement was without any new or additional consideration. There is no evidence before the court in the form of motions or otherwise disclosing consideration for this pre-incorporation agreement which was never acted upon between the parties. At the time the parties signed the pre-incorporation agreement they already had a partnership providing for equal rights in the business. (Dave Heaberlin Deposition, Page 8, Line 13 to Page 9, Line 24) Although entirely oral, this agreement was contracted in the presence of witnesses and was supported by more than adequate consideration, both parties furnishing equipment and promising to perform services. (Deposition Dave Heaberlin, Page 30, Line 10 to Page 33, Line 25; Page 45, Lines 11 to Page 47, Line 4)

To be a valid modification of the prior agreement, the new agreement must have been supported by new consideration. See 17 Am Jur. 2nd, Contracts Section 460. See also P.L.C. Landscape Construction vs. Piccadilly Fish and Chips Inc., 28 Utah 2d 350, 502 P2d 562 (1972). A close examination of the pre-incorporation agreement reveals there is no new consideration whatsoever. (See respondent Melendez deposition, Exhibit 1) The document itself recites that "no additional

new cash is involved". The corporation was never formed and stock never issued. Appellants' only course of income during the period of the partnership was the profits of the business, which were disbursed solely by respondent Lou Melendez.

(Deposition Dave Heaberlin, Page 44, Line 8 to Page 45, Line 10; Page 47, Line 5 to Page 48, Line 24) It was entirely with respondents' power to withhold profits and not credit appellant with his share and thus deprive appellant of the ability to pay for any such proposed stock.

The respondents' only unconditionally promise was to "help form an efficient, portable carnival to the best of (his) abilities" which was an implied covenant under the original oral partnership agreement and thus is not due consideration.

(b) Was The Document Unconscionable and Therefore Unenforceable? - The facts clearly disclose that the respondents herein retained the power to withhold profits from appellants herein, and not enable the appellants herein to pay for any stock in the proposed corporation that was never formed. This is expressly provided in the document itself. (See paragraphs 4B and 17 of Exhibit 1 to Respondent Melendez's Deposition) The intent of the parties is confirmed by the deposition of Dave Heaberlin (page 45, Lines 17-25) and respondents' conduct confirms it. (Deposition Dave Heaberlin, Page 12, Line 19 to Page 12, Line 2; Page 28, Lines 21 to Page 29, Line 2)

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