1977

Thurman David Heaberlin and Margie Heaberlin v. City of Fun Carnival et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

Respondents agree with appellants statement of the nature of the case.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

Respondents disagree with the appellants statement of the disposition in the lower court.

Plaintiffs-appellants filed this action nearly seven years ago, on December 16, 1970, (R. 263-264) to determine the existence of a partnership, to dissolve the partnership, and to have an accounting and distribution. On January 3, 1972, slightly over a year later, defendants-respondents

filed their Notice of Readiness to Trial, (R. 226) to which

the plaintiffs-appellants objected. (R. 224). On April 28, 1972, defendants-respondents filed a Motion for Summary Judgment on the question of the terms of the partnership and the validity of a written partnership agreement between the parties. (R. 216). The Motion was expressly based on the depositions of Thurman David Heaberlin, Margie Heaberlin and Louis Melendez, Jr. On July 19, 1972, the trial court denied the motion for summary judgment specifically because the deposition of Margie Heaberlin had not been filed. (R. 200). Thereafter, Margie Heaberlin's deposition was filed.

A pre-trial conference was held on November 3, 1972. (R. 197). At that time the court bifurcated the trial, the first phase was to be "What was the Partnership?" and the second phase was to be the "Accounting". (R. 197). Pursuant to the pre-trial conference discussions, counsel for both parties submitted supplemental authorities on defendant-respondents previous motion for summary judgment on the issue of the partnership. (R. 192, 194). Oral arguments were held on the motion for summary judgment on January 5, 1973. (R. 188). The trial court entered its order granting summary judgment and ruled that the signed, written agreement between the parties, (Deposition of Thurman David Heaberlin, Exhibit 1) was and is the partnership agreement between the parties on January 18, 1973. (R. 187). This eliminated the need for the "first phase" of the two part trial.

Thereafter plaintiffs-appellants filed a Motion to Alter and Amend Order and Judgment and a Motion for New Trial on Order and Summary Judgment dated the 26th day of January, 1973. (R. 185). Shortly thereafter, defendant-respondent filed a second Motion for Summary Judgment on the issue of dissolution and accounting. (R. 138). Plaintiffs-Appellants Motion to alter and amend the judgment and for a New Trial and Defendant-Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment came on for oral argument together on the 13th day of April, 1973, at which time both Motions were denied. (R. 940).

On the 6th day of February, 1974, this matter came on for what was to be the trial on the issue of accounting. (R. 43). The court decided, at that time, however, that a master would be appointed to take evidence and to determine the accounting and the dissolution of the partnership. (R. 43). Thereafter on the 1st day of March, 1977, defendant-respondent renewed its Motion for Summary Judgment on the issue of the accounting. Oral arguments on the renewed Motion were had on April 8, 1977. (R. 24). On April 15, 1977, the court entered its Order and Judgment granting defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment in all respects and granting defendants a judgment. It is from that Order and Judgment that plaintiff-appellant appeals. (R. 16).

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The respondents request this Court to affirm the judgments of the trial court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Respondents disagree with the statement of facts as set forth by appellant in certain matters. Before respondents set out the facts of the dealings of the parties with each other, there is one statement of fact in appellants' brief to which respondents believe they should first respond. Appellants state on page 9 of their brief that Judge Joseph E. Nelson signed a Restraining Order which was to restrain the defendants from certain types of conduct. Counsel for appellants did in fact prepare and file a motion for such a restraining order and did prepare a proposed restraining order. (R. 252-256). However, contrary to the statement in appellants' brief on page 9, Judge Nelson did not sign the restraining order (R. 253) nor is there any return of service in the record indicating that the defendants have ever been served with any order, nor were the defendants ever in fact served with any restraining order in this matter. The minute entry of the hearing on the Motion for the restraining order which was held February 5, 1971, indicates that his motion was denied. (R. p. 252).

Respondents make the following additions or corrections to appellants statement regarding the dealings of the parties with each other. While, as appellants state, appellants and respondents began working together in the spring of 1964, t

did not immediately enter into a specific oral partnership agreement. (Deposition of Lou Melendez, p. 18-24). In fact, as late as July of 1965, Mr. Heaberlin indicated in a letter to Mr. Melendez that their arrangement was with "no strings attached". (Deposition of Lou Melendez, p. 26 Line 12 to p. 27 Line 10).

Thereafter appellants and respondents began working on a written agreement which appellants read and worked on several times over a long period of time and which was signed by all parties on April 18, 1967. (Exhibit 1, Deposition of Thurman David Heaberlin, p. 9-11, p. 28 Line 4-13; Deposition of Lou Melendez p. 25-30; Deposition of Margie Heaberlin, p. 14, Line 19). The agreement is set out in full in appellants brief on Pages 5-8.

The partnership agreement entered into between appellants (David and Margie Heaberlin) and respondent (Louis Melendez) provides as follows regarding dissolution:

10. Dave, if he elects to leave the firm will never be allowed to leave with any piece of property except for the inventory he filed at beginning of agreement and any added to list by Lou bought personally by Dave - all additions are to be signed for by Lou.

12. As carnival is efficient only in size at no time will the unit ever be divided for disolvment of partnership.

13. Dave will be paid, in case if disolve-ment, price agreed upon or by amount of stock paid into corporation by him and in no case more than the \$25,000.00 agreed purchase price and in same time period as paid for unless otherwise agreed upon.

(Deposition of Thurman David Heaberlin, Exhibit 1)

The partnership agreement provides that upon dissolution, appellants will get (1) Inventory of equipment brought into partnership, (2) Amount paid into partnership but not more than \$25,000.00. When appellant left, he took with him all of his personal property, the items in No. 1 above, a 1967 station wagon, a house trailer, and \$1,100.00 which was paid to him by respondents at the meeting between respondents and appellants and their respective attorneys. (Deposition of Thurman David Heaberlin, p. 18-21).

The only amount appellant had paid into the partnership pursuant to paragraph 8 and 13 was a credit of \$776.50 as 1/2 of a check retained by Lou Melendez in the amount of \$1,553.00. (Deposition of Thurman David Heaberlin p. 13); Deposition of Lou Melendez, p. 38 Lines 24-40, Line 22, Affidavit of Lou Melendez, R. 37). The cash paid appellant just prior to his leaving, therefore, represented a payment of the amount due to appellant under paragraphs 8 and 13, plus an additional \$323.50.

Respondents deny that appellants left the partnership pursuant to a mutual termination as asserted in their brief on Page 9. The circumstances around appellants leaving are as follows:

In May of 1970, appellant David Heaberlin had an argument with Lou Melendez, which Mr. Heaberlin describes as "mostly my fault." (Deposition of Thurman David Heaberlin, p. 17, Line 7). A couple of weeks later Mr. Heaberlin met

with his counsel, Mr. Taylor; the respondent, Mr. Melendez; and respondents' counsel, Mr. Lewis. It was agreed at that meeting that Mr. Heaberlin would stay with the carnival and some talk was had of a possible re-negotiation of the existing partnership agreement. (Deposition of Thurman David Heaberlin, p. 17 Line 19-22). At that meeting Mr. Heaberlin was paid \$1,100.00. (Deposition of Thurman David Heaberlin p. 18, Lines 7-14). After the meeting, Mr. Heaberlin said he "changed his mind and decided not to stay in the company." (Deposition of Thurman David Heaberlin, p. 18, Lines 17-18). Mr. Heaberlin then took his own personal belongings, his shop truck, a house trailer and a station wagon and, without contacting Mr. Melendez, voluntarily left the business and went to California. (Deposition of Thurman David Heaberlin, p. 18-21).

POINT I

APPELLANTS ARE PRECLUDED FROM CONTESTING THE TRIAL COURT'S ORDER OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT DATED JANUARY 17, 1973, BECAUSE OF THEIR FAILURE TO FILE A NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPEAL PURSUANT TO RULE 72(a).

The trial court bifurcated this matter for trial. (R. 195). The first trial was to have determined "What was the Partnership Agreement?" and the second trial was to have determined an accounting of the dissolution of the partnership. (R. 195). Prior to the first trial, however, the court granted summary judgment ruling that the written agreement between the parties (Deposition of Thurman David

Haberlin, Exhibit 1) was the partnership agreement. (R. 187). Plaintiffs, recognizing that this was a final judgment as to the issues of the first scheduled trial, filed a "Motion to Alter or Amend Order and Judgment and a Motion for a New Trial on Order and Summary Judgment" and stated therein that they were doing so pursuant to Rule 59 Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. The trial court denied plaintiffs motions on April 18, 1975. No notice of appeal was filed pursuant to Rule 72(a) until April 28, 1977, more than two years after the court entered its order denying plaintiffs' motion to alter or amend the judgment or for a new trial.

Rule 72(a) Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, provides that:

An appeal may be taken to the Supreme Court from all final orders and judgments in accordance with these rules; provided, that when other claims remain to be determined in the proceedings, a party may preserve his right to appeal on the decided issue until a final determination of the other claims by filing with the trial court and serving on the adverse parties within the time provided in Rule 73(a), a notice of his intention to do so.

Rule 73(a) provides that the time within which an appeal may be taken is one month from the entry of the judgment. Therefore, if plaintiffs had desired to preserve their right to appeal on the judgment issued by the court on January 17, 1973, they would have had to have filed their Notice of Intention to Appeal within one month from April 18, 1975.

No notice of intent to appeal was filed within that one

month period, and, therefore, this Court does not have jurisdiction to review the trial court's Summary Judgment of January 17, 1973.

There are no cases interpreting this rule as it now stands. The cases presented herein all interpret the rule prior to the last amendment by the Supreme Court. The rule was significantly amended on June 23, 1971, which was more than six months prior to the court's entry of summary judgment herein and was approximately two years prior to the court's denial of the plaintiffs' motion for a new trial. The amendment added final "Orders" to final "Judgments" from which on appeal could be taken and inserted the provision for preserving the right to appeal on a "decided issue". (See compiler's notes to Rule 72(a) 1975 Pocket Supplement to Volume 9 Utah Code Annotated 1953).

Prior to this amendment, the Supreme Court had been extremely reluctant to find many types of orders and judgments to be final orders from which an appeal would lie. With this amendment, however, the court broadened the application of Rule 72 to not only final judgments disposing of the entire case but also to orders and judgments which finally decide a particular issue while not determining all claims set forth in a particular case.

The Supreme Court, by its amendment, established the procedure by which a party could preserve his right to appeal on any such decided issue until the final determination of all the other issues and claims. Such a procedure

seems to specifically cover the situation involved herein. In this matter, the trial court bifurcated the issues and scheduled two separate trials. The granting of the summary judgment disposed of the issues of the first trial and left only the issue of an accounting of the dissolution of the partnership. Such an order of summary judgment fits clearly within the definition of "final orders and judgment" as contemplated by Rule 72(a) as amended. Therefore, by their failure to preserve their right to appeal that judgment, they are precluded from appealing that decision at this time.

Even prior to the 1971 amendment expanding the types of orders from which one must file a notice of appeal in order to preserve his right to appeal, this Court has held that a judgment which leaves only the matter of an accounting to be determined is a final order from which an appeal lies. Wheelright v. Roman, 50 Utah 10, 165 P. 513 (1917). While respondents concede that the facts of that case are not identical with the instant case, respondents cite the case for the proposition that the fact that an accounting remained to be made did not stop a judgment from being considered final.

One case which was decided prior to the amendment of the rule which clearly states the spirit of the rule and the position which respondents take herein, is the case of Hayward v. Voorhees, 12 Utah 2d 361, 366 P.2d 977 (1961). The court therein stated:

Respondents raise an issue as to the timeliness of the appeal from the decree of October 2, 1959. It must be conceded that if the decree was appealable at the time of its entry, no appeal was taken within the one month allowed by Rule 73(a), U.R.C.P. The appellants assert that it was not then final and therefore, not appealable because of the proviso that the court retained jurisdiction "for the purpose of adjudicating any matter which may arise under the memorandum pending the final creation of the trust". They point to the fact that there has been no formal setting up of the trust. It is appreciated that because of the factor just mentioned and that the two proceedings, the probate and the civil suit, were involved, there may be some justification for uncertainty as to the status of that judgment. However, cutting through the brush of the attempted procedural forensics, it will be seen that the real issue between the parties and before the court was whether the mountain ground belonged to Mrs. Voorhees or to the estate. Upon preliminary hearing thereon, the issue was resolved against her. The fact that the court retained jurisdiction as mentioned above to adjudicate further matters, did not leave open for reconsideration the question as to who owned that property. There was nothing further to be decided on that particular issue and she was ordered to transfer it to the estate. At being so, the decree entered thereon was final and therefore appealable. Since she took no appeal within the time allowed by law, that decree is conclusive. (12 Utah 2d at 366). (Emphasis added).

In the instant matter, the primary determination was the terms of the partnership. After the determination of the terms of the partnership it is essentially a mechanical process to account for the dissolution of the partnership under whatever terms are determined. Once the court had granted summary judgment establishing that the written

agreement between the parties was in fact the partnership agreement, there was nothing further to be decided on that central issue. Now that the rule has been expanded to include orders and judgments which dispose of one issue rather than all issues, certainly a summary judgment which left only an accounting and determined the terms of the partnership is an order or judgment within the contemplation of this rule. The order and judgment entered January 18, 1973, was therefore a final order or judgment within the meaning of Rule 72(a) and because appellants failed to preserve their right to appeal by failing to file a notice of intent to appeal within the time allowed by law, that order is conclusive on the matter of the terms of the partnership.

POINT II

EVEN IF THIS COURT HOLDS THAT THE TRIAL COURT'S FIRST MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT IS PROPERLY BEFORE THIS COURT FOR REVIEW, THE TRIAL COURT'S SUMMARY JUDGMENT WAS PROPER AND SHOULD BE SUSTAINED.

The partnership, the terms of which are in dispute herein, was entered into sometime after the Spring of 1964, nearly 14 years ago, and was dissolved in 1970, nearly eight years ago. This is the very type of situation contemplated by the development of the concepts behind the Statute of Frauds, the parol evidence rule and the best evidence rule. Men's memories go dim or fail completely or are influenced by their prejudices and desires. In such a situation where

there is a writing which both parties admit having read and

signed, it is the wise policy of the courts to use the written agreement to measure the rights and liabilities of the parties. 59 Am.Jur.2d, Partnership, Section 33.

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